

DRAFT O&M Standard

3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 1.0 APPLICABLE CODES AND REGULATIONS
- 2.0 GENERAL
- 3.0 NOTIFICATION
- 4.0 EMERGENCY RESPONSE
- 5.0 EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM
- 6.0 **REPORTING**
- 7.0 POST INCIDENT REVIEW
- 8.0 LEVEL III RESPONSIBILITIES
- 9.0 FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES
- **10.0 MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS**
- 11.0 LIAISON WITH AGENCIES AND EMERGENCY NUMBERS
- **12.0 EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS**
- 13.0 RESPONSE TO LARGE INTERRUPTIONS OF SERVICE
- 14.0 TURN-ON/TURN-OFF DURING A MASS OUTAGE
- 15.0 EXCESSIVE ODOR INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES
- 16.0 FLOODS
- **17.0 SECTIONAL MAPS**
- **18.0 PREDESIGNATED OPERATIONS CENTERS**

EXHIBITS: 1 - 3

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014

Standard: 10-24-2011	



O&M Standard

3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 2

1.0 APPLICABLE CODES AND REGULATIONS

1.1 This Standard meets the requirements of the Federal Pipeline Safety Regulations Section 192.615 and Missouri - 4 CSR 240-40.030(12)(J)(K).

2.0 GENERAL

- 2.1 An emergency is defined as any situation involving Company facilities or operations which may endanger human life or property, or which may have an unplanned effect on normal service to customers. This situation may also be referred to as a Hazardous Condition. (See exhibits 1 and 2 for criteria identifying incidents that are Reportable to Federal and State Agencies.)
- 2.2 An emergency includes, but is not limited to, the following:
 - 2.2.1 Excessively low or high pressures;
 - 2.2.2 Loss of service to customers due to an unplanned outage which presents a threat to their safety or health;
 - 2.2.3 Major gas leaks, flashes, fires, or explosions; or
 - 2.2.4 Uncontrolled release of gas.
- 2.3 The cause of an emergency may be, but is not limited to, the following:
 - 2.3.1 Failure of gas facilities;
 - 2.3.2 Third party disturbances, such as contractor excavation;
 - 2.3.3 Natural disasters, such as floods, tornadoes, earthquakes, or hurricanes, etc. When a natural disaster occurs special reporting to the Missouri Public Service Commission (MPSC) is required. Contact the Pipeline Safety Compliance Department;
 - 2.3.4 Vandalism or enemy or terrorist attack; or
 - 2.3.5 Operator error.
- 2.4 All levels of supervision shall have access to this Plan and shall be familiar with its contents.
 - 2.4.1 All supervisors who are responsible for emergency action shall have a copy of the latest edition of the local Operating Area Emergency Plan. All other supervisory personnel shall have access to a copy of the local Operating Area Emergency Plan.

Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	3110S:	Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 3

2.5 Levels of personnel referenced throughout these procedures are as follows:

2.5.1 Level I: Hourly and/or the first responder.

2.5.2 Level II: First-line supervisor (hourly personnel report directly to this person).

2.5.3 Level III: Director, Manager or designated supervisor.

2.5.4 Level IV: Vice President of Field Operations and Incident Notification Personnel.

2.6 Each local Operating Area shall review and update their Local Operating Area Emergency Plan as necessary. Such review shall be made a minimum of once each calendar year but at intervals not exceeding 15 months.

3.0 NOTIFICATION

- 3.1 Each local Operating Area shall establish and maintain a method of receiving and documenting emergency situations keeping a log of emergency situations and notifications in accordance with regulatory requirements.
 - 3.1.1 Each local Operating Area shall designate a telephone number for reporting emergency situations. The number must be operational and staffed at all times and available to the general public.
 - 3.1.2 Personnel who receive emergency calls must obtain all necessary information to assess the emergency and determine the appropriate action. If the person reporting the emergency does not have or refuses to provide the appropriate information, this should be recorded in the log.
 - 3.1.3 Until relieved by a higher ranking Field Operations employee, the first responding employee at the scene of an emergency shall be responsible for coordinating the efforts of all Company personnel responding to the situation and have authority for all decisions in handling the emergency.
 - 3.1.4 **Field Notification** Each local Operating Area shall receive and handle emergency calls and notifications in accordance with the following guidelines:
 - After receiving an emergency call and obtaining the necessary information, the person receiving the call shall dispatch an appropriate qualified employee to the scene of the possible emergency to investigate and confirm the emergency.
 - The appropriate Level II personnel shall also be notified of the potential emergency situation including third party damages.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBIECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 4

- If an actual emergency situation is confirmed, other local Operating Area personnel shall be notified.
- 3.1.5 **Corporate Notification** Appropriate Corporate personnel shall be notified of all emergencies in accordance with the following guidelines:
 - Level II or III personnel or appropriate supervisor in charge shall be responsible for ensuring that the Vice President of Field Operations and the Incident Notification Personnel are notified of all emergencies, in particular any emergency which requires filing a report with Federal or State regulatory agencies. See Exhibits 1 and 2 for criteria identifying incidents that are reportable to Federal and/or State Agencies.
 - Incident Notification Personnel shall be responsible for notifying the appropriate corporate departments and personnel in accordance with the Emergency Notification List found on the MGE Intranet.
- 3.1.6 **Customer Notification** Notification of customers whose service may be affected by an emergency shall be made by the local Operating Area personnel when time allows.
- 3.1.7 **Police and Fire Departments Notification** Notify Dispatching of the scope of the emergency. If it is determined that assistance will be required from various departments or the Fire and Police Departments are needed to assist in evacuations of and maintaining the security of the restricted zone, Dispatching will assist in making the arrangements. Once Fire and Police Departments are on site, request that they stay on site until area is made safe.

4.0 EMERGENCY RESPONSE

4.1 Employees responding to a potential emergency situation shall consider during the initial response, the following steps:

4.1.1 **Determine if a Hazard exists.**

4.1.1.1 Quickly assess available information to determine if a hazard exists. If so, immediately take steps to protect all Company employees' lives and physical safety as well as the lives and physical safety of the public by, among other things, the establishment of a restricted zone.

4.1.1.2 If the emergency situation warrants, request additional MGE personnel and Emergency Services assistance through the Dispatcher. Once on-site, the employee(s) shall identify themselves to the responding Emergency Services agencies.

4.1.1.3 Inform the Dispatcher or Duty Supervisor of the situation as soon as possible, who will notify local Operating Area Level III personnel. Level III personnel should inform the

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MCE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 5

Incident Notification person and the Vice President of Field Operations or his/her designee as appropriate and keep them apprised of developments as they occur.

4.1.2 **Determine the Extent.**

4.1.2.1 If there is reason to suspect gas may be escaping and/or accumulating inside of a structure, the atmosphere shall be tested at the building's entrance with a combustible Gas indicator on the L.E.L. or Lower Explosive Limit scale. Further interior investigation may proceed only if gas readings are found to be less than 20 percent L.E.L. (1 percent gas) in free air. For gas readings inside of a structure at or in excess of 20 percent L.E.L. (1 percent gas) in free air or if CGI checks are unable to be taken because there is no entry and there is reason to suspect gas may be migrating into the building, follow the procedures outlined in section 4.1.3.2 of this Standard.

• A member of the public reporting a gas odor inside of, or gas found adjacent to a structure is sufficient "reason to suspect".

4.1.2.2 If the building is involved in a fire, gas service to the premises will be turned off, if it is possible to do so without risk to the employee's safety.

4.1.3 **Protect Life.**

4.1.3.1 The protection of human life and physical safety is ALWAYS our highest priority in any emergency situation. Under no circumstance shall an employee enter an excavation to stop the flow of gas without the proper equipment, including appropriate personal protective equipment and another responsible person, such as another employee or fire fighter present.

4.1.3.2 Gas readings found inside of a structure at, or in excess of 20 percent L.E.L. (1 percent gas) in free air shall require the employee to take the following actions:

- Initiate an evacuation by advising all occupants including employees within the sound of your voice that a dangerous situation exists and they need to evacuate immediately and move away from the building and outside of any established restricted zone.
- Instruct occupants that they should leave immediately and should not smoke, operate light switches or use the telephone while inside the building.
- If you are in the process of investigating indoors and the meter is in the immediate area, or it is outdoors and accessible as you are exiting the area, turn it off. Do not

delay your evacuation of the affected area by pursuing the shut off of a meter in an area where levels of natural gas exist that would require an evacuation.

• As you are exiting the building, leave all doors open and open any readily accessible windows on your way out. Open the windows from the top, if possible.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MCE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 6

If you are in a multiple story structure, only consider opening readily accessible windows at the level you are on and below as you exit. Do not go to other levels within the building.

- Establish a restricted zone where all customers, public, and MGE employees are kept out of the affected area by way of barricades (safety cones and/or warning tape and/or use of vehicles). Notify Dispatching of the scope of the emergency. Request that the Fire and Police Departments be on scene to assist in evacuations of and maintaining the security of the restricted zone. If it is determined that assistance will be required by various departments, Dispatching will assist in making these arrangements.
- Once Fire and Police Departments are on site, request that they stay on site until the area is made safe.
- In situations where stopping the flow of gas will take a prolonged period of time, or where the migration of gas cannot be mitigated, consider having Dispatching request that the Fire Department contact the appropriate utilities to order that all electric and telephone services within the affected area be shut off, in order to eliminate them as possible sources of ignition within the affected area. If this request is made, it must be stressed to the utilities that their work must be conducted outside of the restricted zone. Dispatching shall also notify the appropriate Supervisor when such requests have been made.
- All employees whose job duties include responding to emergencies will be issued a laminated card containing a checklist of key action items to be taken or considered both when arriving at the scene of a gas leak and when gas readings are found inside a structure at or in excess of 20% LEL (1% gas/air). Such employees will be instructed that this card shall be kept in a location that is readily available for their reference in emergency situations.
- All buildings in the adjoining area, outside the restricted zone, should, as appropriate, be checked with a CGI. Sufficient personnel should be provided to do this. The check should include the following as conditions allow: Interior:
 - The entrance to the building
 - Underground utility services entering the building (gas, water, oil, conduits, etc.).
 - Drains and sewers (sanitary and storm).
 - At the top of exterior and/or basement walls.
 - At cracks in the floor or exterior basement walls.
 - For buildings without basements: check crawl spaces, or openings below the floor level.

Exterior:

- Where the gas line enters the building and around Company facilities.
- Over the service line and around the building walls, to within at least one foot of the building wall, if possible.
- Any ditch lines or where excavations have taken place.
- All down spouts that are connected to a sewer system.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 7

- All street openings such as boxes, sewers, drains, vaults, manholes, lamp post, traffic signals, control boxes, etc.
- All street openings such as boxes, sewers, drains, vaults, manholes, lamp post, traffic signals, control boxes, etc.
- CGI monitoring of adjoining area, outside the affected area, should be conducted until situation is under control.
- All corrective actions should be performed outside of the restricted zone until all probable ignition sources are eliminated and it is determined that it is safe to reenter the restricted zone. If the corrective actions being taken do not have the desired effect, other actions must be taken in a prompt, effective manner to make the area safe, if such action can be performed in a safe manner outside the restricted zone.
- To mitigate underground lateral migration of gas, dig vent holes and/or open manhole covers whenever possible to deter gas from entering buildings. This should be done outside of the restricted zone if one has been established. Special attention should be given to those circumstances where gas can more easily migrate, such as damages caused by boring, or a service pulled out of a main, etc.
- Check for gas outages in the immediate area. Do not close main valves or shutdown a main unless permission is obtained from Engineering and the Pressure and Measurement Departments.
- The first responder reaching the location of the emergency will determine if additional assistance is needed. As damage and emergency situations warrant, the first responder is responsible for notification of Dispatching. Dispatching shall notify any other departments involved.
- Re-route vehicular traffic, if necessary.

4.1.3.3 Access to the structure(s) or room(s) shall not be permitted until concentrations have been reduced to a level below that identified in 4.1.3.2.

4.1.3.4 Consideration should be given to reducing gas system pressures or even turning the gas supply completely off during repair activities, if determined to be necessary in the judgment of Company personnel.

4.1.4 **Protect Property.**

4.1.4.1 Take all practical measures outside any established restricted zone to protect Company and public property from damage as long as it can be done without unnecessary

risk to any employee's physical safety or life.

4.1.4.2 Stop the flow of gas by closing a valve, squeezing off the line, or using a stopper fitting.

4.1.4.3 If the leakage is creating a hazardous situation and cannot be located and/or immediately brought under control, the section of piping involved shall be removed from service.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 8

4.1.4.4 If information discovered during the initial response indicates that the situation does not meet the definition of an emergency, as set forth in this Standard, the investigation shall be made in accordance with **Standard 3320- Leak Investigation**, and any leakage detected shall be classified and repaired in accordance with **Standard 3530- Leak Detection and Classification**.

4.1.4.5 Refer to **Standard 3150- Investigation of Incidents,** for post incident investigation procedures.

5.0 EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM (E R T)

- 5.1 An Emergency Response Team (E R T) may be mobilized by any one, or combination of, the following:
 - 5.1.1 Local Operating Area management;
 - 5.1.2 The Vice President of Field Operations or designee;
 - 5.1.3 Incident Notification Personnel; or
 - 5.1.4 Any Officer of the Company.
- 5.2 The E R T shall consist of personnel from local operations and, depending on the severity of the incident, a representative from at least one or more of the following to be selected in the order shown:
 - 5.2.1 Incident Notification Personnel,
 - 5.2.2 Engineering,
 - 5.2.3 Corporate Communications, and
 - 5.2.4 Legal and others as deemed necessary to assist in the response.
- 5.3 The E R T shall assist Local Area Operations Management in:

- 5.3.1 Response to the immediate needs of the public affected by the incident;
- 5.3.2 Media relations and communications;
- 5.3.3 Initiating the investigation process which may include, but is not limited to:
 - Interviewing witnesses;
 - Photographing incident site and/or equipment;



0&M Standard

3110S

Page: 3110 - 9

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

- Collecting, tagging, transporting and securing of evidence;
- Assisting regulatory agency and/or emergency management representatives in their investigation efforts;
- If necessary, establish contact with outside experts for assistance in the investigation; (requires authorization by the Legal Department or the Vice President of Field Operations);
- Create diagrams of the incident site;
- Document post incident events as they occur; and
- Attempt to determine probable cause.
- 5.4 The E R T shall be directed by the Incident Notification Personnel, Legal Department, or the Vice President of Field Operations, or their designee.

6.0 REPORTING

- 6.1 Level II Personnel shall inform local management of any major incident as soon as possible. Local management shall make every effort to notify the Incident Notification Personnel or, if unable to do so, the Vice President of Field Operations prior to notifying any regulatory agency. However, **notification of appropriate regulatory agencies must be made within two hours**. If local management is unable to contact the Incident Notification Personnel or the Vice President of Field Operations within the two-hour period, local management shall call the appropriate regulatory agencies themselves in order to comply with the two-hour deadline for notification.
 - 6.1.1 Federal Department of Transportation Office of Pipeline Safety Operations (Washington,

D.C.)

- Reporting Criteria Exhibit 1
- Telephone Numbers Emergency Notification List found on the MGE Intranet
- 6.1.2 Missouri Public Service Commission (Jefferson City, MO)
 - Reporting Criteria Exhibit 2
 - Telephone Numbers Emergency Notification List found on the MGE Intranet
- 6.1.3 Each local Operating Area shall establish and maintain open lines of communication between all levels of supervision to achieve prompt reporting.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 -10

6.2 Incidents requiring a telephone report to State or Federal agencies also require a **notification** within 24 hours and a written report within ten (10) days, to be submitted to the Manager, **Pipeline Safety Compliance** following the incident. Level III Personnel shall ensure the following forms are completed and forwarded, as appropriate:

•	Forms:	STATE	318-8	
		FEDERAL	Distribution	F 7100.1
			Transmission	F 7100.2

- 6.3 Level II or III Personnel or appropriate supervisor in charge shall notify the Incident Notification Personnel immediately of each incident that is reportable to Federal DOT, OSHA or State agencies.
 - 6.3.1 In the event subsequent investigation indicates an incident is not an emergency situation but is a newsworthy occurrence or may infer liability, Level III Personnel shall notify the Incident Notification Personnel as soon as possible.
 - If there is ever a doubt about the need to report an incident, contact the Incident Notification Personnel or Vice President of Field Operations for assistance and further instruction.

7.0 POST-INCIDENT REVIEW

- 7.1 Following each reportable incident requiring a written report, a Post-Incident Review shall be conducted as soon as possible. This review must be within one week of the reportable incident. Such Review shall be conducted in accordance with, but not be limited to, the following guidelines:
 - 7.1.1 The Review Meeting shall be conducted by the Pipeline Safety Compliance Department in

conjunction with the local Operating Area office supervision to review the response to the reportable incident, including the steps taken, and to identify actions, if any, that could have been taken to improve the response.

- The review shall be conducted for the purpose of determining the causes and minimizing the possibility of reoccurrence.
- During the meeting, the local Operating Area supervision shall verify that this Standard was properly complied with. In the event it is determined some portions of this Standard were not properly complied with, the local Operating Area supervision shall initiate further training of employees concerning the provisions of this Standard or any other action required to ensure full compliance in future emergency situations.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 11

- 7.1.2 The Pipeline Safety Compliance Department shall document the meeting according to the following guidelines:
 - Record the time and date of the review meeting.
 - Record the names of Level II and Level III personnel in attendance.
 - Document the discussion and a recap of the meeting, including what conclusions were reached and what actions, if any, will be taken to improve response to emergencies.
 - The report shall be maintained in the local Operating Area office.
 - Any training of employees related to emergency response shall be documented and kept by the Operations Training Department.

8.0 LEVEL III RESPONSIBILITIES

- 8.1 Level III Personnel, or appropriate supervisor in charge, shall be responsible for general supervision and coordination during all field operations of an emergency situation including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 8.1.1 Assignments and duties for all Level II Personnel or appropriate supervisor in charge.
 - 8.1.2 Final decisions on curtailment, essential valve operation and regulator control.
 - 8.1.3 Notifying Fire and Police Departments provided notification was not initiated by

Dispatching.

- 8.1.4 Reporting incidents to the Incident Notification Personnel as soon as possible in accordance with provisions of this Plan.
- 8.1.5 Reporting incidents to the next higher level of management as soon as practical.
- 8.1.6 Contacting local public officials when necessary.
- 8.1.7 The release of information to the news media in accordance with Section 10.0 of this Plan.
- 8.1.8 Making arrangements through appropriate management for assistance from other local Operating Areas for manpower and equipment, when necessary.
- 8.1.9 The Emergency Response, in accordance with Section 4.0 of this plan.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MCE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 12

- 8.2 Level III Personnel, or appropriate supervisor in charge, shall also be responsible for reviewing and updating the local Operating Area Emergency Plan, as appropriate, and providing training on the plan in accordance with the following:
 - 8.2.1 All supervisors who are responsible for emergency action shall have a copy of the latest edition of the local Operating Area Emergency Plan. All other supervisory personnel shall have access to a copy of the local Operating Area Emergency Plan.
 - 8.2.2 Each local Operating Area shall conduct meetings with supervisory personnel to discuss and update their Emergency Plan at least once each calendar year at intervals not exceeding fifteen (15) months.
 - 8.2.3 Training shall be provided to all operating personnel to ensure they are familiar with operating procedures dealing with responding, investigating and handling gas emergencies.
 - 8.3 Level III Personnel, or appropriate supervisory in charge, shall be responsible for ensuring lists of emergency personnel, including addresses and telephone numbers, are maintained and kept current at each local Operating Area.

9.0 FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES

9.1 <u>**Construction and Maintenance**</u> - Department personnel shall be responsible for determining the

personnel needed to handle emergencies related to construction and maintenance activity. If additional assistance is needed, Level III personnel shall be informed and shall make appropriate arrangements for additional assistance.

- 9.1.1 The Construction and Maintenance Department may perform investigative functions as well as performing repairs, system shutdown, etc. As a result, all personnel within the department shall be familiar with requirements of this standard relating to the emergency response and the notification requirements.
- 9.1.2 The Construction and Maintenance Department shall maintain sufficient vehicles, personnel, equipment, tools, and materials to adequately respond to an emergency situation. Each item shall be identified, and a record of each maintained, including the type, Company number, and radio number, as appropriate.
 - Each item identified shall be properly maintained and in working condition at all times. Any items used during normal work situations shall be returned to their place of storage in proper working condition.
- 9.1.3 During emergency situations, Dispatching shall be responsible for furnishing main and service locations and the Construction and Maintenance Department shall be responsible for purging operations.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBIECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 13

- 9.2 **Installation and Service** This department shall determine the personnel required to handle leak response, and turn-on/turn-off procedures during an emergency situation. If additional personnel are required from other departments or other local Operating Areas, Level III supervisor shall be so informed and shall make arrangements for additional assistance as necessary.
 - 9.2.1 In many cases, Installation and Service Department personnel will be the first Company employees to arrive on the scene of an emergency and therefore all departmental personnel shall be familiar with the emergency investigation and the notification requirements.
 - 9.2.2 The Installation and Service Department shall maintain sufficient vehicles, personnel, equipment, tools, and materials to respond to an emergency situation. Each item shall be identified, and a record of each maintained, including the type, Company number, and radio number, as appropriate.
 - Each item identified shall be properly maintained and in working condition at all times. Any items used during normal work situations shall be returned to their place of storage in proper working condition.
- 9.3 **Engineering. Pressure and Measurement** These departments will coordinate with other departments to determine what valves and regulators need to be operated when reducing, isolating, shutting off, or turning on the pressure in a system.

- 9.3.1 Engineering, Pressure and Measurement, Gas Supply and Sales departments shall determine what companies and industries should be curtailed in an emergency situation, and shall be responsible for notifying these customers. An appropriate marketing representative may assist in notification of customers.
- 9.3.2 Engineering, Pressure and Measurement and/or Construction Maintenance departments shall be responsible for locating essential valves.
- 9.3.3 Engineering, Pressure and Measurement and/or Construction Maintenance departments shall be responsible for determining the resources required to operate valves and regulators. If additional assistance is required to operate valves and regulators, Level III personnel shall be notified and shall make arrangements for assistance as appropriate.
 - Lists of essential valves and system maps and records shall be maintained in a file at each local Operating Area office and will be available for use during emergency situations. The location of the file shall be stated within the local Operating Area Emergency Plan.
- 9.4 <u>**Customer Service**</u> The Customer Service staff will be responsible for providing clerical support as needed for the turn-on/turn-off process. The staff may also be required to assist with other support. (e.g. OUT/B printouts or Address Scans)

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 14

- 9.5 **Legal Department and Incident Notification Personnel-** Shall be responsible for handling injury or damage claims resulting from emergency-type conditions and shall be contacted any time such situations occur. This group shall also be responsible for coordinating the investigation of reportable incidents and notifying appropriate corporate personnel.
- 9.6 **Other Personnel** Other personnel may be called to assist in an emergency.

10.0 MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS

10.1 All contacts with the news media and all media inquiries must be directed through our Corporate Communications Department.

11.0 LIAISON WITH AGENCIES AND EMERGENCY NUMBERS

11.1 Each local Operating Area shall develop and maintain a good working relationship and open communications with appropriate fire, police, and other public officials in their area in preparation for situations which may develop during which it may be necessary to request their help. Elements to consider in developing such a relationship include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 11.1.1 Identify the agencies and how to contact them in an emergency.
- 11.1.2 Inform each agency of the Company's abilities and resources in handling gas emergencies, and discuss with them under what conditions the Company may request their assistance.
- 11.1.3 Have them describe their responsibilities, resources available, and how they believe they could best assist the Company during an emergency.
- 11.1.4 Distribute to each agency educational material relating to emergency control of natural gas and provide other educational assistance.
- 11.1.5 Provide accurate information to each agency on how to contact the Company to request help or report a problem involving natural gas or suspected gas leakage.
- 11.2 Each local Operating Area shall document dates of meetings held with such agencies, including the names of people involved and shall retain such lists locally for a period of two (2) years.
- 11.3 Each local Operating Area shall contact all fire departments within their operating territory annually. The contact may be accomplished either by a personal visit or by written correspondence.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 15

- 11.3.1 Each fire department shall be provided copies of educational material and information on how to contact the Company in case of an emergency (an emergency call list).
- 11.3.2 Through the annual contact, the local Operating Area shall provide information about the Company's facilities and operations within the area, including, but not limited to, the following:
 - The types of gas services likely to be encountered in the area, how each type of service can be shut off, the purpose of pressure-reducing facilities and regulator vent stacks.
 - Information about what to do when the presence of escaping gas is encountered or suspected in buildings, sewers, manholes, or vaults.
 - Information about what to do when gas is burning in buildings, sewers, manholes, or vaults, or when escaping gas is burning out of doors.
- 11.3.3 Each fire department contacted shall be instructed not to operate any line valves, regulator station valves, or pit valves, and to not reopen any curb valves or meter valves which have been closed.
- 11.3.4 During each contact with fire departments, emphasis shall be placed on the necessity of

notifying the Company regarding:

- All fires where gas or gas facilities are involved;
- All explosions and/or fires involving death or injury where the gas company has the potential for involvement;
- All gas leaks or suspected gas leaks, and all instances when combustible vapors of unknown origin are found in sewers or buildings.
- 11.4 Each local Operating Area shall contact all police departments, sheriff's offices, and other law enforcement agencies within their operating territory annually to familiarize these agencies with our facilities and emergency operating procedures. The contact may be accomplished either by a personal visit or by written correspondence.
 - 11.4.1 During the contact, each agency shall be provided information about proper steps to take when relief valves vent, or vandalism or accidents occurs affecting gas facilities.
 - 11.4.2 During the contact, each agency shall be provided with copies of the <u>Natural Gas Hazards</u> and the First Responder Handbook.
- 11.5 Each local Operating Area shall establish and maintain sufficient rapport with all other agencies as necessary to ensure efficient and effective operations during incidents, civil disturbances, interruptions of natural gas service, or other similar emergency situations.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 16

- 11.6 Each local Operating Area shall maintain current lists of names, telephone numbers, and responsible parties for the following:
 - 11.6.1 Fire departments.
 - 11.6.2 Police, sheriff, and other law enforcement agencies.
 - 11.6.3 Local elected and public officials.
 - 11.6.4 Hospitals, doctors, and other medical care facilities.
 - 11.6.5 Ambulance and other rescue team services.
 - 11.6.6 Other agencies, organizations and groups or individuals as appropriate.
 - 11.6.7 Media.
 - 11.6.8 Contractors that may provide assistance in an emergency.

- 11.7 Each local Operating Area shall maintain a current list of the nearest offices of other utilities, both gas and electric, that could provide assistance in an emergency.
 - 11.7.1 Each local Operating Area shall maintain a list of emergency numbers for each gas supplier.
- 11.8 Gas Supply shall be kept informed of any actions taken involving pipeline suppliers during emergency situations.
 - See the Emergency Notification List found on the MGE Intranet for related gas suppliers' phone numbers.

12.0 EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS

- 12.1 Each local Operating Area shall utilize appropriate educational materials, including booklets, slide program, VCR tapes, and other information to enhance the working relationship between the Company and outside agencies. Those materials shall meet or exceed the minimum requirements of regulatory agencies and shall be approved by the Legal Department or their designee.
- 12.2 Each local Operating Area shall maintain training and education of employees or the public as required by the appropriate regulatory body.

13.0 RESPONSE TO LARGE INTERRUPTIONS OF SERVICE

13.1 The local Operating Area shall be responsible for coordinating, organizing, and managing all personnel responding to a large interruption of service in their area.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 17

- 13.1.1 When a large interruption of service occurs, assistance from other Operating Areas or from outside the Company often is required. In such instances, Company personnel or contractor help from outside the area where the work is to be performed shall be accompanied by sufficient supervisory personnel. However, ultimate responsibility for response to the outage shall reside with the local Operating Area in which the emergency or outage occurs.
- 13.2 Large interruptions of service shall be treated as an emergency situation, and the response shall be in accordance with all other provisions of this Standard.
- 13.3 If an interruption of service occurs during normal business hours in a downtown business area and inside meters are involved, a concentrated effort shall be made to shut off these meters first.
 - 13.3.1 If possible, the shut off of these meters shall be accomplished while the business is open, which will allow Company personnel to make arrangements for re-entry when service is to

be restored.

- 13.3.2 If a business is closed and there is a curb valve problem, forced entry by police may be required in order to shut off the meter.
- 13.4 If an interruption of service occurs that involves a large geographic area and/or large numbers of customers, strong consideration shall be given to dispersing and receiving orders from a temporary location in the immediate area.
 - 13.4.1 Such a temporary headquarters may be a vehicle or an available building in the area.
 - 13.4.2 During response to an interruption involving a large geographic area and/or large numbers of customers, personnel responding to the interruption of service shall be provided the same areas to relight as they shut off, when possible.
- 13.5 During response to a large interruption of service, Level II Personnel shall provide information to employees under their supervision regarding meals including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 13.5.1 Location of the restaurant or other eating facility should be considered in the planning.
 - Arrangements for this facility may be prearranged by local Operating Area management.
- 13.6 Each local Operating Area shall develop and maintain a listing of appropriate radio frequencies for use during a large interruption of service. Level III Personnel shall be responsible for ensuring adequate radio communications are maintained throughout the interruption of service.
 - 13.6.1 During interruptions of service when a limited number of foreign mobile units will be involved, the base and all mobile units shall operate on the emergency frequency for the area involved, if practical.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBIECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 18

- 13.6.2 During interruptions of service when a large number of mobile units will be operating, essential transmissions to and from the base unit may be impaired due to the quantity of transmissions by the mobile units. If adequate transmission becomes a problem for the above or any other reason, the use of alternate frequencies or mobile phones should be considered.
- 13.7 Each employee directed to respond to a large interruption of service shall be responsible for providing the personal equipment necessary for response to the situation, if possible. Such equipment may include but is not limited to: flashlights (extra bulb and batteries); matches; curb keys; "warning tags;" "Not Home" cards; small pipe wrench(s); common hand tools (screwdrivers, pliers, etc.), Combustible Gas Indicator; Flame Ionization Unit; and personal clothing, such as warm coats and boots.

13.7.1 Personnel leaving their own local Operating Area to work an outage in any other local Operating Area shall provide equipment for themselves, to the extent possible.

14.0 TURN-ON/TURN-OFF DURING A MASS OUTAGE

- 14.1 Local Operating Area management shall be responsible for ensuring that all personnel involved in making turn-ons or turn-offs during response to a mass outage are trained and familiar with proper turn-on/turn-off procedures.
 - 14.1.1 At the supervisor's discretion, the emergency mass outage procedure may be initiated if gas service to twenty-five or more customers is affected by a gas outage.
 - 14.1.2 When a mass outage occurs, all such personnel shall follow the Turn-On Procedure for a Mass Outage. (See Exhibit 3.)
- 14.2 All Level I Personnel involved in making turn-ons or turn-offs during response to a mass outage shall be responsible for being aware of and following the procedure outlined on Exhibit 3 Turn-On Procedure Mass Outage.
 - 14.2.1 All personnel involved in response to a mass outage shall be aware that the procedures specified in **Standard 3310 Service Orders** do not apply during a mass outage situation. (See Exhibit 3.)

15. EMERGENCY ODOR INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

15.1 The purpose of an Emergency Odor Investigation is to abbreviate the inside leak investigation procedures as found in Standard 3320 while providing a safe and thorough investigation of odor complaints. Reducing the investigation time for each odor call will increase the ability to respond sooner to each notification of odor.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
Standard: 10-24-2011		



0&M Standard

3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 19

- 15.2 When an operating area begins to receive an abnormal number of inside complaints in a given geographical area, the duty supervisor or his/her designee shall be notified.
 - 15.2.1 If the odor complaints continue, the supervisor shall contact the personnel working the orders to determine the results of the investigations.
 - 15.2.2 If the investigations of the calls being generated are determined to be excessive odor in the system or an odor from an outside source that is not natural gas the EMERGENCY ODOR INVESTIGATION PROCEDURE may be put into effect by the duty supervisor.
- 15.3 Odor complaints shall be dispatched in the order in which they are received unless the person taking the call has reason to assign the order to the next available Level I person.
- 15.4 Consideration shall be given to the following:
 - Rate in which the calls are being received;
 - Available dispatch personnel;
 - Available Level I employees;
 - Other manpower resources, off duty, other reporting locations, phone center etc.;
 - Are the response times within limits;
 - Inside odors 1 hour; and/or
 - Outside odors 2 hours.
- 15.5 If the duty supervisor determines to initiate the EMERGENCY ODOR INVESTIGATION PROCEDURE, he/she shall advise the Level III, Director, Manager or designated supervisor.
- 15.6 The duty Supervisor shall advise the dispatchers to place the EMERGENCY ODOR INVESTIGATION PROCEDURE into effect.
 - 15.6.1 Consideration shall be given to taking odor complaint calls at the phone center and entering the orders in the CSS system and generate service orders for dispatcher dispersal.

	Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014	
--	---	----------------------------------	--	--

Standard: 10-24-2011



O&M Standard

3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 20

15.7 **EMERGENCY ODOR INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES FOR INSIDE ODORS**

- 15.7.1 Verify the address.
- 15.7.2 Turn on the combustible gas indicator (CGI), purge, and zero the instrument in a gas-free atmosphere.
- 15.7.3 Set the CGI on the LEL scale in free standing air outside the structure. Upon first entry into the structure, sample the atmosphere with the CGI to determine if a hazard exists. If the CGI indicates the presence of 20% LEL (1 % Gas) or more in free standing air, the situation shall be treated as a hazardous condition, and action taken immediately. (Refer to Standard 3545 Hazardous Atmospheres, for additional information.)
 - The first and foremost concern shall be the safety of employees and the public. Personnel at the site shall determine the best method of ensuring the safety of both the customer and the employee and determining whether the source of the leak can be quickly identified and eliminated, or whether evacuation of the building is necessary.
- 15.7.4 Inquire as to where the person smelled the odor and investigate this area with the CGI.
- 15.7.5 Using the CGI on the LEL scale check the area around gas appliances.
- 15.7.6 Check any basement drains and around any piping that may enter the basement underground.
- 15.8 If any gas indications are found, complete the investigation using procedures found in Standard 3320 Leak Investigation.
- 15.9 If no indications are found, continue by checking outside, using the FI or GCI & bar holes over the service line and along the foundation of the structure facing the gas main to ensure gas is not present.
- 15.10 The Gas Investigation order shall be completed indicating the complaint was investigated using the Emergency Odor Investigation Procedure (EOIP) and that a shut in test was not completed.
- 15.11 If the response time exceeds one hour for an inside odor calls or two hours for outside complaints the reason shall be documented on the leak log or gas service order.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous		Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
---	--	--

Standard: 10-24-2011



O&M Standard

3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 21

16.0 EMERGENCY RESPONSE TO FLOODING

- 16.1 When flood conditions disturb service or threaten an area, the following precautions should be followed.
 - 16.1.1 Review the history of high water conditions to identify areas which may be affected.
 - 16.1.2 Locate valving to isolate the systems affected.
 - 16.1.3 Make an effort to shut off each meter in areas where high water is imminent. Document each meter which has been shut off and sealed.
 - 16.1.4 Define the area of concern at maximum flood conditions.
 - 16.1.5 During major flooding, a command post may be established. When practical, this command post should be established jointly with other utilities and local law enforcement, rescue personnel and other public safety organizations to enhance communication between the agencies.
 - Assign Company personnel to areas of responsibility.
 - 16.1.6 As flood waters recede, the following procedures should be considered.
 - Inspect and service district regulators that were under water;
 - Pump drips located in the flood area;
 - Verify system pressures;
 - Restore service to affected customers. Document each turn-on;
 - Leak survey the system defined by the flood area;
 - Observe any surface conditions which may have affected the Company's pipeline and other facilities (uprooted trees, wash outs, cave-ins, etc.) and ensure the piping system was not damaged; and
 - Contact appropriate city departments about street cave-ins, storm sewer washouts and broken water lines.

Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous	-	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
Ellective Date of Flevious	51105:	Stalluaru 51105: 10-9-2014

Standard: 10-24-2011



O&M Standard

3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 22

17.0 SECTIONAL MAPS

- 17.1 Each local Operating Area shall develop and maintain emergency area maps and records which may include the following information:
 - 17.1.1 The approximate number of customers involved.
 - 17.1.2 The anticipated man-hours required to shut off all customers within the area.
 - 17.1.3 The anticipated man-hours required to turn on all customers within the area.
 - 17.1.4 The estimated purge time and purge locations for the system.
 - Accessibility of meters, travel time, and purge time shall be considered when evaluating man-hours for each area, taking into account specific environments, i.e., rural areas vs. urban areas where the concentration and location of customers may vary significantly.
- 17.2 These maps shall be available in sufficient numbers for assignment to field supervisors responsible for the area involved.

18.0 PREDESIGNATED OPERATIONS CENTERS

18.1 Each local Operating Area shall identify predesignated operations centers to be used during emergency situations for each area of operations. The following factors, at a minimum, shall be considered when selecting the centers:

18.1.1 The availability of private telephone facilities, with increased capabilities obtainable.

- 18.1.2 The availability of adequate rest rooms.
- 18.1.3 The availability of enough space to adequately accommodate anticipated workforce.
- 18.1.4 The availability of adequate parking for both Company and private vehicles.
- 18.2 Local Operating Area management shall prepare a list of emergency operations centers for their area, including, as a minimum, the following:
 - 18.2.1 The name and description of the facility.
 - 18.2.2 The address of the facility.

Supersedes: 3110R	Implementation Period for	Effective Date of Current
Effective Date of Previous	3110S:	Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014

Standard: 10-24-2011



O&M Standard

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 23

3110S

18.2.3 The name, phone number, and address of the person to contact for use of the facility.

- 18.2.4 Phone numbers at the facility, if available.
- 18.2.5 The phone company and name of person to contact for additional phones and lines.
- 18.3 Local Operating Area management shall be aware that immediate availability is critical when selecting the site of an emergency operations center.
 - 18.3.1 Army Reserve and National Guard facilities often meet many of the ideal criteria of such a center. Each local Operating Area shall make and confirm arrangements for emergency operations center on an annual basis. These arrangements should be reconfirmed on a yearly basis.

Supersedes: 3110R	Implementation Period for	Effective Date of Current
Effective Date of Previous	3110S:	Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014

Standard: 10-24-2011



O&M Standard

3110S

Page: 3110 - 24

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

FEDERAL REPORTS DOT - PHMSA

- 1. A telephone report is required on any incident that involved the release of gas from a pipeline and meets any of the following criteria:
 - Caused a death or a personal injury requiring in-patient hospitalization.
 - Caused estimated property damage, excluding cost of gas lost, to the operator or others, or both, of **\$50,000** or more.
 - Unintentional estimated gas loss of <u>three million cubic feet</u> or more;
 - Was significant in the judgment of the operator, even though it did not meet the above criteria.
- 2. Information reported shall include at a minimum the following:
 - Names of operators and person making report and their telephone number.
 - Location of the incident (street address, city, county, and state).
 - Time and date of the incident.
 - Fatalities and personal injuries, if any.
 - All other significant facts that are relevant to the cause of the incident or extent of the damages.
- 3. COMMENTS
 - All occurrences which meet any of the above criteria shall immediately be reported to the Incident Notification Personnel, Vice President of Field Operations, or his designee
 - All supervisory personnel who are subject to duty or investigative requirements shall be familiar with the above requirements and shall report such occurrences to management as soon as possible after receiving knowledge of them.
 - Proper lines of communication shall be established between all levels of supervision so as to accomplish the above reporting.
 - For phone numbers see the Emergency Notification List found on the MGE Intranet.

		Exhibit 1
Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
Standard: 10-24-2011	51100	
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 25
	STATE REPORTING	

STATE REPORTING MISSOURI

- 1. A telephone report is required within two hours of discovery by the operator of any event that involves a release of natural gas involving the Companies actions or facilities, or where there is a suspicion by the operator that the event may involve a release of gas from the operators action or facilities, and involves:
 - (a) A death
 - (b) A personal injury requiring medical care administered in an emergency room or health care facility even though the injury did not result in hospitalization.
 - (c) Estimated damage to the property of the operator, or others, or both (including gas loss), totaling **\$10,000** or more; or
 - (d) An event that is as significant in the judgment of the operator because of location, rerouting of traffic, evacuation of building(s), media interest, etc., even though it does not meet clauses (a), (b) or (c) of this section.
- The telephone notice required by Section 1 shall be made to the Missouri Public Service Commission.
 See the Emergency Notification List found on the MGE Intranet.
 - (a) Names of operators and person making report and their telephone number;
 - (b) Location of leak or incident (including county);
 - (c) Time and date of accident/incident;
 - (d) Fatalities and/or personal injuries;
 - (e) Phone number of operator; and
 - (f) Other significant facts relating to the accident or incident.
- 3. Except as provided in Section 4, each gas company shall report, in writing, a summary of each incident or accident under Section 1 (a) through (d) of this exhibit.
 - The report shall be submitted to the MPSC Gas Safety Staff as soon as practical, but not more than 30 days after detection, on forms listed under Section 6.2.

		Exhibit 2
Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Current Standard 3110S: 10-9-2014
Standard: 10-24-2011		
MGE MISSOURI GAS ENERGY	O&M Standard	3110S
SUBJECT: Emergency Plan		Page: 3110 - 26

STATE REPORTING MISSOURI

4. The accident or incident report required by Section 3 of this exhibit need not be submitted with respect to master meter systems.

5. COMMENTS

- All occurrences which meet any of the above criteria shall be immediately reported to the Incident Notification Personnel, Vice President of Field Operations and/or his/her designee.
- All supervisory personnel who are subject to duty or investigative requirements shall be familiar with the above requirements and shall report such occurrences as soon as possible after receiving knowledge of them.
- Proper lines of communication shall be established between levels of supervision so as to accomplish the above reporting.
- In the event the Company's telephone notification to the Commission of a reportable incident exceeds the two-hour notification time period, a written explanation shall be submitted with the written incident report.
- For phone numbers see the Emergency Notification List found on the MGE Intranet.

			Exhibit 2
Supersedes: 3110R Effective Date of Previous Standard: 10-24-2011	Implementation Period for 3110S:	Effective Date of Cur Standard 3110S: 10-	



O&M Standard

3110S

SUBJECT: Emergency Plan

Page: 3110 - 27

	TURN-ON PROCEDURE - MASS OUTAGE
1.	Verify address.
2.	Determine location of gas meter.
3.	Turn on gas and watch test hand for one minute. If one- minute check indicates no leakage, gas will be left on.
4.	Purge, if necessary. All safety controls must be in proper operating order. Safety controls that have been submerged under floodwaters should be replaced before lighting the appliance. Relight heating system first during winter.
5.	Light water heater and check for draft on water heater and furnace.
6.	Light remaining appliances.
7.	Advise customer of results of light-up.
8.	Make proper notations on order.
9.	Remain in close contact with group leader and/or office.
31	6.29

Exhibit 3